City of Seattle Invitation to Bid #FAS-3348
Addendum 

Updated on 04/14/2015

The following is additional information regarding Invitation to Bid #FAS-3348, titled Biodiesel released on March 16, 2015.  The due date and time for responses has been changed to April 20, 2015; 4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective bidders and the City’s answers, and revisions to the ITB.  This addendum is hereby made part of the ITB and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	ITB Revisions

	1
	03/23/2015
	04/14/2015
REVISED
	With regards to the nightly wet-hosing, as opposed to using the number of vehicles, can we offer our prices relative to gallons delivered?  Similar to Table 5 but with a smaller delivered gallon hierarchy.  I’d suggest the following;  0 – 200 gallons , 200 to 400 gallons , 400 to 600 gallons , 600 to 1000 gallons and greater than 1000 gallons, with a “Drop Fee” box as an option for the smaller deliveries.
	Night fueling pricing table has been updated with the new gallon thresholds.
No drop fee for night fueling services. Incorporate all the cost associated with delivery (aka drop fee) and wet hose services in the additional mark up. The formula for Table 6 would be Mark-up + Additional Mark up.  The formula for Table 5 would be Mark-up + Drop Fee.
	Please use revised offer sheet below.
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	2
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	Does any of the Wet-hosing require Red Off-road ULSD and Clear ULSD?  Or is it all Clear On Road Diesel?
	It is all Clear On Road Diesel.
	

	3
	03/23/2015
	04/02/2015
	Based on the North Transfer site location and tank size, are there any restrictions that would not allow for a larger delivery, instead of the Avg. 236 drop?
	There was a typo on the tank size for this location. The actual tank size is 1,000 gallons. More than 236 gallons can be delivered at this location as needed.  See Item 1 - Revised Offer Sheet.
	

	4
	03/23/2015
	03/26/2015
	Can you explain why the Portland OPIS B5 Contract price was selected?
	See Page 2, Section 1 of bid documents.  It is the most robust competitive OPIS for biodiesel in our region due to the Oregon State biofuel mandate.
	

	5
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	For the Night time deliveries – Is there a vehicle/equipment list available by location?
	No.  Please provide pricing according to the updated night fueling pricing table.
	

	6
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	For night time deliveries – can you provide an estimated nightly or monthly volume or Avg. volume by vehicle?
	In the updated pricing table we listed total night fueling gallons in 2014. Please provide pricing according to the updated table.
	

	7
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	The contract asks for Net 30 ay payment terms – is that correct?
	The City’s standard Payment terms are Net 30 Days.  Bidders may offer a discounted payment term.  See Page #11 Section 7 item #4, Offer sheet item #6.
	

	8
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	Does the city have any expectation to pay by credit card?
	Not at this time
	

	9
	03/23/2015
	04/02/2015
	Do the sample procedures only go for the bulk deliveries or does that include the Nightly fueling as well?  How long is the expectation to store the 1 liter samples?
	Vendor will pull 1 liter samples from each biodiesel tanker delivery and retain for a minimum of 90 days. The samples will be made available for testing in the event of suspected contamination. If the same tanker delivery is used for wet hose and bulk, then only 1 sample will need to be retained.
	

	10
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	What is the current process for the city add, remove and change vehicles to receive Nightly Fueling?
	We will contact the vendor when a change occurs. There is a provision in the bid that we may add or remove vehicles anytime at the City’s discretion.
	

	11
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	Where do we include the delivery fee for emergency deliveries?
	See Section 5, Page 4, Item #20 in the bid.  Vendor shall provide price to City at time of emergency delivery request.
	

	12
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	Is the Night Fueling delivery’s times set at 5pm-Midnight?
	Yes.  You may also offer alternative time deliveries if you have one and we can verify if that would work.
	

	13
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	In Table 6, the Night Fueling Pricing table – is pricing for # of vehicle scanned or # of vehicles fueled?
	Night fueling pricing is based on the total gallons distributed at each site.
	

	14
	03/23/2015
	03/27/2015
	As an out of state company which employees must be granted Equal Benefits in order to comply with SMC 20.45.
	See SMC 20.45.030, Limitations in the following link:   https://www.municode.com/library/wa/seattle/codes/municipal_code?nodeId=TIT20PUWOIMPU_SUBTITLE_IIICO_CH20.45CICOONBE 
	

	15
	03/24/2015
	03/27/2015
	I would like to make the request that on the bid offer sheet, table 5, a 5th quantity range be added for 500 gallon deliveries and below. Doing so will allow bidders to get more competitive on deliveries of 501-1,999 gallons.
	See Answer for Question #1
	

	16
	03/24/2015
	03/27/2015
	Are the wet-hosing deliveries all clear diesel?
	See Answer for Question #2
	

	17
	03/24/2015
	04/02/2015
	Valvtect manufactures different types of additives.  If this is for winterization, are we required to store this product?
	The products are for winterization.  The vendor will be expected to provide seasonal additives when weather permits and/or at the request of the City.
	

	18
	03/25/2015
	04/02/2015
	Will freight from Portland to Seattle be considered in the bid proposal markup?
	No. Freight must be built into your cost and not added as a line item.  Portland OPIS is used as a competitive reference price but it is not required that fuel be purchased in Portland.
	

	19
	03/26/2015
	04/02/2015
	One of the challenges with this bid will be dealing with retain, which is the left over product in the fuel delivery truck.  Because Biodiesel is a specialty product, most of us do not have a location to store B10 or B20, we’ll be blending at the Racks.  Can one of the cities larger 20 k tanks be used at any time to unload the retain from our trucks at the agreed price for that location?
	Yes. You can unload wet hose retain at any of our larger tanks at the agreed price for that location.
	

	20
	03/26/2015
	03/27/2015
	As discussed on the preliminary call, with a large number of tanks below the lowest tier level, bidders will have to price this tier higher than is necessary which will result in a higher cost to the city for tanks that fall on the higher end of that spectrum – we would suggest inserting an additional tier for deliveries of 500 gal or less.
	See Answer for Question #1
	

	21.
	03/26/2015
	04/02/2015
	As *** helped to develop the fleet fueling program with the City of Seattle, can it assume that its current reporting and invoicing processes meet the current bid requirements?
	No.  Please provide invoicing and reporting requirements as per the bid specification.
	

	22.
	03/26/2015
	04/02/2015
	The Portland market is not indicative of the market in which the fueling will be taking place – bidders will likely have to price in extra margin to accommodate the added risk of buying a non-correlated product; we are concerned that this will result in a higher than necessary cost to the City.
	Please include the appropriate mark up in the fuel pricing table.
	

	23.
	03/26/2015
	04/02/2015
	Soy Methyl Ester biodiesel is affected by different market pressures than Used Cooking Oil.  Having to tie UCO pricing to an SME index will result in bidders having to add margin to cover the added risk or buying a non-correlated product; we are concerned that this will result in a higher than necessary cost to the City
	Please include the appropriate mark up in the fuel pricing table.
	

	24.
	03/26/2015
	04/02/2015
	SME B5 is a readily available commodity in the Portland market at the terminal level (pre-blended) and while some B5 may be procured at the terminal level in Washington State in some instances, it is all soy methyl ester product and not UCO.  As the bid requires UCO which is not available pre-blended at the terminal level, the logistics required to procure and splash blend UCO biodiesel will result in a higher than necessary cost to the City.
	Please include the appropriate mark up in the fuel pricing table.
	

	25.
	03/26/2015
	04/02/2015
	The bid requires blends of B5, B10, B20 and B40 but all are tied to a Portland B5 SME index – it is unnecessarily difficult to factor in enough margin to cover tying a higher blend concentration to a B5 index which will undoubtedly result in a higher than necessary cost to the City.
	Please include the appropriate mark up in the fuel pricing table.
	

	26
	04/01/2015
	04/02/2015
	Would the city be open to changing the indexing to still reflect the benefits of the more robust Portland market for the bio component but using the Seattle market for the diesel component?
	The City will leave the bid pricing structure as-is.
	

	27
	04/10/2015
	04/13/2015
	City Initiated Bid Due Date Extension
	
	See Page 1 Solicitation Schedule, Table 1.  The date Sealed Bids are Due to the City has been changed to 04/20/2015.

	28
	04/10/2015
	04/14/2015
	We found that there are 4 stations that are actually closed or under construction right now.  Is there an estimated time frame these will be opened up?
	Our records indicate there are 3 stations closed.  Fire Station 18 and Fire Station 29 will be re-opened in December 2015 or January 2016. North Transfer Station is scheduled to be re-opened in July 2016. These are based on current construction schedules and could change. The City will keep the awardee updated on any changes to this schedule.
	

	29
	04/10/2015
	04/14/2015
	Does the city have any federal exemptions that would allow them to use red/off-road product instead of clear diesel? (federal tax exempt)

If not, will there ever be requests for off-road/red diesel bio-blends?
	Yes, the City does have a federal Tax exemption for use of red/off-road product instead of clear diesel.  No there will never be requests for red/off road diesel under this contract.
	

	30
	04/10/2015
	04/14/2015
	There are multiple locations that have tanks that are specified as Unl and B20, who will be delivering the unleaded?
	Unleaded fuel services are not in the scope of this bid.  The Unleaded will continue to be delivered by our current contractor.
	

	31
	04/10/2015
	04/14/2015
	Is there another address for Jackson – or is this not the Jackson Golf Course? (We were unable to find the tanks).
	This is the Jackson Golf Course and the address is listed correctly.
	

	32
	04/10/2015
	04/14/2015
	For the nighttime deliveries at Haller Lake – the foreman on site told us that they were using the fueling station.  Does this facility currently get night time fueled?
	Yes, the facility currently gets night time fueled.
	

	33
	04/12/2015
	04/13/2015
	In review of Section 66 of the Terms & Conditions, can you provide clarification again on why this is not a prevailing wage job?  Having dealt with L&I previously, I'd like to be able to have you explain via the RCW which confirms such.
	Fueling is a service in this case and does not take place on-site at a Public Works construction site.   Per email from L&I, delivery of fuel to a fueling station not associated with a public works construction site falls just outside the universe of prevailing wage.
	

	34
	04/13/2015
	04/14/2015
	The prompt payment section states that the bid pricing will be reduced by the amount of the discount, but it is unclear if this is intended to be off of the offered margin or off of a total daily price (index+margin).  As the bid does not include a reference date and only asks for a markup/delivery fee (rendering bidders unable to calculate an extended price), we would like clarification as there is a material difference between the two interpretations
	See Section 8, Page 12, Pricing.  The discount will be taken from the total tabulated price.  The city will select a reference date to be used as the index price in the tabulation.
	

	35
	04/13/2015
	04/14/2015
	Can you tell me the address of the City of Seattle storage facility for retained product?
	See question #1 Revised Offer Sheet Table # 2 for addresses of larger tanks the can be used for retained product.  Larger tanks are defined as 4,000 gallons or more.
	

	36
	04/14/2015
	04/14/2015
	City Initiated Bid Due Date Extension Added Time
	
	See Page 1 Solicitation Schedule, Table 1.  The date Sealed Bids are Due to the City has been changed to 04/20/2015; 4:00PM
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BID OFFER SHEET (Revised)
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City of Seattle


ITB #FAS-3348

Title:  Biodiesel

Table 1 - Fuel Type and Annual Estimated Quantities

		Fuel Type

		Estimated Months

		Estimated Gallons



		B10 (10% B100 + 90% ULSD)

		Nov – Feb

		373,394



		B20 (20% B100 + 80% ULSD)

		Mar - Oct

		746,788





Seasonal blend months are estimated. There is a possibility of using a B20 blend for more than 8 months out of the year.


Table 2 - Fuel Site Locations & Anticipated Quantities


		City of Seattle 2013 Fuel Tank Deliveries



		SITE NAME

		ADDRESS

		FUEL

		 TANK SIZE 

		 TOTAL QTY 

		#DROPS

		 DROP AVG 



		CHARLES ST.

		1030 7TH AVE, SEATTLE, 98134

		BIO

		       20,000 

		       266,637 

		34

		            7,842 



		FIRE STN. #2

		2334 4TH AVE, SEATTLE, 98121

		BIO

		         3,000 

		         12,016 

		15

		               801 



		FIRE STN. #8

		110 LEE ST, SEATTLE, 98109

		BIO

		            500 

		               860 

		3

		               287 



		FIRE STN. #11

		1514 SW HOLDEN, SEATTLE, 98106

		BIO

		            500 

		           6,407 

		27

		               237 



		FIRE STN. #17

		1050 NE 50TH ST, SEATTLE, 98105

		BIO

		         1,100 

		         16,718 

		34

		               492 



		FIRE STN. #18

		1521 NW MARKET, SEATTLE, 98107

		BIO

		         1,100 

		         17,683 

		35

		               505 



		FIRE STN. #25

		1300 E PINE ST, SEATTLE, 98122

		BIO

		         1,100 

		         18,538 

		41

		               452 



		FIRE STN. #28

		5968 RAINIER AVE S, SEATTLE, 98118

		BIO

		            500 

		         15,238 

		99

		               154 



		FIRE STN. #29

		2139 FERRY AVE SW, SEATTLE, 98116

		BIO

		            500 

		           8,091 

		33

		               245 



		FIRE STN. #31

		1319 N NORTHGATE WAY, SEATTLE, 98125

		BIO

		            500 

		         12,444 

		98

		               127 



		FIRE STN. #33

		9645 RENTON AVE S, SEATTLE, 98118

		BIO

		            500 

		           4,238 

		19

		               223 



		FIRE STN. #34

		633 32ND AVE E, SEATTLE, 98112

		BIO

		            500 

		               907 

		4

		               227 



		FIRE STN. #36

		3600 23RD AVE SW, SEATTLE, 98106

		BIO

		            500 

		           4,615 

		19

		               243 



		FIRE STN. #39

		2806 NE 127TH ST, SEATTLE, 98125

		BIO

		            500 

		           5,091 

		21

		               242 



		FIRE STN. #41

		2416 34TH AVE W, SEATTLE, 98199

		BIO

		            500 

		           2,201 

		12

		               183 



		HALLER LAKE 

		12600 STONE AVE N, SEATTLE WA 98133

		BIO

		       20,000 

		       155,129 

		20

		            7,756 



		HORTICULTURE

		1600 S. DAKOTA ST, SEATTLE, 98108

		BIO

		         2,000 

		         33,187 

		32

		            1,037 



		INTERBAY

		2501 15TH AVE W, SEATTLE, 92525

		BIO

		            250 

		           1,578 

		9

		               175 



		JACKSON

		13550 10TH AVE N, SEATTLE, 92522

		BIO

		            500 

		           2,724 

		9

		               303 



		JEFFERSON

		4101 BEACON AVE S, SEATTLE, 92523

		BIO

		            500 

		           2,512 

		12

		               209 



		JTF

		9401 MYERS WAY S, SEATTLE, 98108

		BIO

		         1,000 

		         15,927 

		47

		               339 



		SOUTH TRNSFR

		130 SOUTH KENYON ST, SEATTLE, 98108

		BIO

		         5,000 

		         19,235 

		7

		            2,748 



		NORTH TRNSFR

		1350 N 34TH ST, SEATTLE, 98108

		BIO

		       1,000 

		         23,880 

		101

		               236 



		SOUTH SVC CTR 

		3613 4TH AVE S, SEATTLE, 98134

		BIO

		         4,000 

		         88,608 

		51

		            1,737 



		WEST SEATTLE

		35TH SW & SW SEATTLE, 92524

		BIO

		            500 

		           2,596 

		16

		               162 





Table 3 - Biodiesel Night Fueling Locations, Frequency & Number of Vehicles

		SITE ID

		SITE LOCATION

		ADDRESS

		DAYS

		COUNT



		OCC

		OPERATIONS CONTROL CENTER

		2700 Airport Way S, Seattle, WA 98134

		M,W,F

		55



		NOC

		NORTH OPERATIONS CENTER

		1318 N 128th St, Seattle, WA 98133

		M,W,F

		36



		CST

		CHARLES STREET

		1030 7th Ave S, Seattle, WA 98134

		T,W,TH

		33



		HLK

		HALLER LAKE

		12600 Stone Ave N, Seattle, WA 98133

		T,W, TH

		35



		NSC

		NORTH SERVICE CENTER

		1300 N 97th St, Seattle WA 98103

		W, TH

		56



		SSC

		SOUTH SERVICE CENTER

		3613 4th Ave S, Seattle WA 98134

		T, TH

		56



		WST

		WEST SEATTLE

		9200 8th Ave SW, Seattle WA 98106

		F

		13



		2014 Total Night Fuel Diesel Dispensed – 232,727 Gallons (drops/gallons per site is unavailable)





Table 4 - Night Fueling Transaction Data Template (Excel file)


Electronic transaction billing files for night delivery ‘wet hose’ tickets will be provided to the City weekly in the format specified below.

		Equip#

		Trx Date & Time

		Fuel Type*

		Qty

		Cost

		Vendor ID

		SiteID

		Invoice



		(8 Characters)

		(MMDDYYYY [HH:MM]) Military time

		(3 Characters)

		(999.999)

		(999.999)

		(4 Characters)

		(3 Characters)

		(10 Characters)



		01234

		07/14/2014 00:26

		B20

		20.67

		80.60

		A018

		OCC

		A1234XXABC





*Coding for Fuel Type is as follows: B20 – 20% Biodiesel/80% ULSD; DSL – 100% ULSD. The City will provide you a Vendor ID prior to the first data submittal. The submission date will be incorporated into the file name. Example: 09242014_COSnightfuel.xls


Table 5 - Fuel Pricing Table

		Delivery Breakpoints

		Mark-Up

		Drop Fee



		B-5 – Current Portland OPIS B5 SME Contract Average



		9,500 gallons or more

		

		



		4,001 - 9,499 gallons

		

		



		2,000 - 4,000 gallons

		

		



		501 - 1,999 gallons

		

		



		500 gallons or less

		

		



		B-10 – Current Portland OPIS B5 SME Contract Average



		9,500 gallons or more

		

		



		4,001 - 9,499 gallons

		

		



		2,000 - 4,000 gallons

		

		



		501 - 1,999 gallons 

		

		



		500 gallons or less

		

		



		B-20 – Current Portland OPIS B5 SME Contract Average



		9,500 gallons or more

		

		



		4,001 - 9,499 gallons

		

		



		2,000 - 4,000 gallons

		

		



		501 – 1,999 gallons

		

		



		500 gallons or less

		

		



		B-40 – Current Portland OPIS B5 SME Contract Average



		9,500 gallons or more

		

		



		4,001 - 9,499 gallons

		

		



		2,000 - 4,000 gallons

		

		



		501 – 1,999 gallons

		

		



		500 gallons or less

		

		



		B-99 – Current Portland OPIS B5 SME Contract Average



		9,500 gallons or more

		

		



		4,001 - 9,499 gallons

		

		



		2,000 - 4,000 gallons

		

		



		501 - 1,999 gallons

		

		



		500 gallons or less

		

		



		ULSD – Current Seattle OPIS Contract Average



		9,500 gallons or more

		

		



		4,001 - 9,499 gallons

		

		



		2,000 - 4,000 gallons

		

		



		501 – 1,999 gallons

		

		



		500 gallons or less

		

		





All delivery locations must be serviced. Drop fees may be charged for deliveries, on a per delivery basis, at the vendor’s discretion and must be identified separately in the Drop Fee column above.

Table 6 - Night Fueling Pricing Table

		Number of Gallons Dispensed Per Site

		Additional Mark-Up



		2,000 gallons or more

		



		501 – 1,999 gallons

		



		500 gallons or less

		





Bidder must include night fueling services. All costs associated with night fueling services including delivery or labor will be included in the Additional Mark-Up field in the table above.  This will be in addition to the fuel mark-up in Table 5 for the corresponding blends and quantities delivered. No other charges will be assessed for night fueling.

Table 7 - Seasonal Additive Fee (Information Only, will not be used in price evaluation)

		Additive Brand Name

		Price per Gallon



		ValvTect

		



		Diesel Fuel Supplement Cetane Boost

		



		Other brand – please specify*

		





*Please include a technical specification sheet that the City will use to review for product acceptability.


1. It is MANDATORY that you provide a markup on tables 5 and 6.

2. The bid prices shall include and cover all duties, handling and transportation charges and all charges incidental to the requested work excluding Sales Tax or Use Tax.  Offer shall agree to all City contract Terms and Conditions without exception.

3. Do not mark, write-in or add any exceptions to the specifications, schedule, terms or conditions.  Do not attach alternative boilerplate.  Any such exceptions can invalidate your Offer and the Buyer can reject your Bid. 

4. If you make an error in typing your prices or any corrections to your Offer Submittal, you may mark it in ink and initial the correction.  If it is not marked in ink and or it is not initialled, the Buyer may reject your bid.  Do not use whiteout. 

5. Price Changes in future contract years shall be in accordance with the specifications.  Whole sale and mark-up rates will not change through the life of the contract.  Other price changes are restricted to the specifications stated in the solicitation and the contract.


6. Prompt Payment Discount:  _________%____ days.  Note:  Prompt payment discount periods equal to or greater than 10 calendar days will receive consideration and bid pricing will be reduced for evaluation by the amount of that discount.

7. Interlocal Agreement: The City of Seattle has entered into Interlocal Agreements with other governmental agencies pursuant to RCW 39.34, in lieu of those agencies conducting a separate competitive bid.  Does Vendor agree to provide this product or service to such agencies?


  

    

Yes:______
No:_________

By submitting this Bid, Vendor acknowledges he/she has read and understands the entire Invitation to Bid and agrees to comply with its terms and conditions.  The Vendor also agrees to fulfill the offer made in their Bid through any subsequently awarded Contract.


Full Legal Name of Company: ___________________________________________


Signed By:_______________________________

Printed Name:  ___________________________

Date: _____________
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